
 

Contact: Michele Chesterman   
01633 656565 
E-mail: Michele.chesterman@newport.gov.uk 
Date of Issue: 11 September 2017 
 
 

Agenda 
Cabinet Member for Assets & Member Development 

 
Date: Monday, 11 September 2017 
 
Time: Not Required 
 
Venue: Not Required  
 
To: Councillors M Whitcutt 
 

 
 
Item  Wards Affected 

 
1   Disposal of Herbert Road Extension Land  (Pages 3 - 12) 

 
 

2   Development - Duffryn Woodlands Project  (Pages 13 - 20) 
 

 

3   Lease of Rhiwderin Play Area, Rhiwderin, Newport to Graig 
Community Council  (Pages 21 - 26) 
 

 

 
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report 
Cabinet Member for Assets and Member Development 
 
Part 1  

 
Date:  11 September 2017 
 

Subject Disposal of Herbert Road Extension Land 
 

Purpose To seek approval from the Cabinet Member for Assets and Member Development the 

appropriation of the above land from Leisure to Planning (following all necessary 
consultation) and subsequent disposal of the above Council owned Land. 

 

Author  Housing and Assets Manager 

 

Ward St Julians 

 

Summary In 2015 the Council sold a large parcel of land at Herbert Road for residential 

development to increase the supply in the area in line with the Housing Supply Strategy.  
The site has changed ownership and is now owned by the Pobl Group and preparatory 
ground works are underway. 

 
 Pobl, one of the partner Housing Associations working with Newport City Council is 

reviewing the form of the proposed development and is looking to incorporate certain 
improvements to the layout and design.  During the course of this review it has been 
identified that a much improved layout could be achieved if this piece of land were added 
to the site currently being developed. 

 
The land is currently appropriated to the leisure service and before the land can be 
disposed of the action to appropriate the land to Planning for development purpose must 
take place first. Formal notice must be placed in the press allowing comments / objections 
to be forwarded to the Council. 
 
The disposal of this land does represent a minimal loss of informal open space used by 
residents though with a surplus of overall open space remaining it is considered the best 
long term benefit will be achieved through its disposal and incorporation into the housing 
development. 

 

Proposal 1. Following the formal advertisement of the appropriation from leisure to planning, the 

consideration of any objections, to appropriate the subject land to planning 
purposes; and 

2. Declare the land surplus and dispose of same to Pobl, on terms to be agreed by the 
Head of Law and Regulation. 

 

 
Action by  Head of Regeneration, Investment and Housing 

 

Timetable Immediate 

 
This report was prepared after consultation with: 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 Estates Team Leader, Newport Norse 
 Estates Portfolio Officer, Newport Norse 
 Property Services Manager, Newport Norse 
 Director, Place, Newport City Council 
 Head of Regeneration, Investment and Housing, Newport City Council 
 Housing and Asset Manager 
 Head of Finance – Chief Finance Officer 
 Head of Law and Regulations – Monitoring Officer 
 Head of People and Business Change 

Signed 

Page 4



 

1. Background 
 
1.1 The land shown edged and shaded on the attached plan was sold by the Council in August 2015, 

as a residential development site. This disposal was completed because of the identified need for 
housing in the area and forms part of the Housing Supply Strategy and the long term supply of 
affordable housing in the area. This involved consultation with local residents and interested 
parties at the time of disposal. Planning permission has been granted to develop the land and 
substantial ground remediation works are underway. The remediation works being necessary 
because this is not the most straightforward of sites to develop due to the contour of the site. 

 
1.2 There is around another 25,000 cubic meters of fill still to be compacted, after which installation 

of initial infrastructure will commence.  This will include primary estate roads, improvements to 
the reen system and improvements to the river side walk.  Under the present programme, it is 
anticipated construction of the first new residential units (3 blocks facing the river) will start in 
February 2018.  For information a plan summarising current programme to July 2018 is attached 
as an appendix. 

 
1.3 The present owner of the site is Pobl Group.  At a recent meeting, officers from Pobl indicated the 

scheme is likely to be redesigned and a new planning application submitted, incorporating a 
different layout.  Pobl did not obtain the present permission, under which the remediation works 
are being undertaken.  Since acquiring the site however, it has been decided that the proposals 
could be improved by reducing the number of units, thereby improving the density of 
development, whilst increasing the size of certain units.    Opportunity will be taken also to amend 
the layout and thereby improving parking arrangements and orientation with the river. 

 
1.4 During the course of this review, it was noted that the layout could be further improved by 

incorporating the land subject to this report (shown hatched on the plan), into the development 
site.  Pobl therefore has enquired whether the Council is willing to sell this land.  

 
1.5 The subject land is approximately 0.4 acres in extent and comprises a level, mown grassed area.  

It is used, together with other land, as informal open/recreation space by local residents and has 
been included in the provision of informal open space as part of the ward profile.   

 
1.6 It is understood that a major sewer passes under the site. 
 
1.7 The site is unlikely to be developable in isolation, due to access constraints should the Council 

wish to consider appropriation to planning and disposal in the future.  Incorporating the land into 
the adjoining major development offers the best chance of releasing development and therefore it 
would be appropriate to negotiate a direct sale to Pobl. 

 
1.8 The area as stated in report is used as a recreation area by local residents but at the moment no 

information is available on the views of the local residents The formal advertisement of the 
appropriation detailed below will act as the consultation with local residents and any comments 
and concerns will be considered in line with the formal process shown below 

 
1.9 The FIT ( Field in Trust )minimum benchmark standard assessment indicates that St. Julians is in 

the top 25% of least deficient wards in terms of designated open space provision.  
 
1.10 The ward has an overall surplus of 7.59 hectares in terms of provision but there is a shortfall in 

informal and equipped open space. 
 
1.11 This will increase further the deficit in informal open space but with the site only being 0.4 acres( 

0.16 hectares ) it will have minimal impact in the overall level of available open space in the ward. 
 
1.12 The subject land currently is held by the Council for Recreation purposes.  In order to safeguard 

land for development and to reduce the potential for a town or village green application, it has 

Page 5



 

become established practice to appropriate, prior to sale, open space land to be sold for 
development to planning purposes under Section 122 (2A) of the Local Government Act, 1972. 

 
1.13 There is also a requirement under Section 233(4) of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 to 

advertise the Council’s intention to dispose of open space land held for planning purposes.  It is 
proposed therefore to: 

 
i) Advertise the Council’s intention to appropriate the subject land to planning purposes; and 
ii) Advertise the intention to dispose of the development site. 

 
1.14 The advertisements, which will run concurrently, will appear for two consecutive weeks in the 

South Wales Argus.  There will be a period of 28 days for any objections to be made.  If there are 
any objections, these will be reported to the Cabinet Member for consideration.  If there are none, 
the appropriation and disposal will proceed, following expiry of the objection period. 

 
1.15 Subject to there being no objections or any that are received being appropriately considered, it is 

anticipated the land would be transferred around the end of the current calendar year. 
 
1.16 It is clear that the use of this parcel of land would improve the layout for the future residents and 

would provide an overall betterment to the site, it does however come at a cost of loss of open 
space, even though minimal as shown above. 

 

2. Financial Summary 
 

 Year 1 
(Current) 

£ 

Year 2 
 

£ 

Year 3 
 

£ 

Ongoing 
 
£ 

Notes 
including budgets heads affected 

Costs     Disposal will offer small revenue 
savings in maintenance and 
management costs. 
 
Disposal will generate a capital 
receipt. 

(Income)      

Net Costs      
(Savings)      

Net Impact 
on Budget 

     

 

3. Risks 
 

Risk Impact  of 
Risk if it 
occurs* 
(H/M/L) 

Probability 
of risk 
occurring 
(H/M/L) 

What is the Council doing or 
what has it done to avoid the 
risk or reduce its effect 

Who is 
responsible 
for dealing 
with the risk? 

Failure to 
dispose of the 
asset will 
result in no 
capital receipt 
to the Council 

H L Disposal should be actively 
pursued by all parties 

NCC, Newport 
Norse and Pobl 

Significant 
ground 
conditions 
prevent 
development 

M L Undertake necessary ground 
investigations 

Pobl 

Page 6



 

Risk of layout 
compromising 
redevelopment 
proposals 

L L Undertake early dialogue with 
Planners 

Pobl 

Risk of 
registering 
Village Green 

M L Manage the process as set out 
in the report 

NCC 

Risk of 
deterioration in 
the condition 
of the land 

L L Keep the land under review as 
management action 

NCC and 
Newport Norse 

* Taking account of proposed mitigation measures 
 

4. Links to Council Policies and Priorities 
 

 Corporate Asset Management Plan – 2012 to 2017 

 Property Rationalisation Programme 

 Medium Term Revenue Plan (MTRP) 

 Housing supply strategy 
 

5. Options Available and considered  
 
5.1 Decline the request to purchase and continue to manage the subject land as informal open 

space. 
 
5.2 To undertake the necessary consultation through the press notices, appropriate the land from 

leisure to Planning and dispose of the land on terms to be agreed by the Head of Law and 
Regulations.   

 

6. Preferred Option and Why 
 
6.1 Appropriate the subject land to planning purposes; and 
 
6.2 Declare the land surplus and dispose of same to Pobl, on terms to be agreed by the Head of Law 

and Regulation. 
 

6.3 This option will allow a better long term layout of the site to be achieved  and support 
development of a major housing development whilst losing only a minimal level of informal open 
space. This option will also generate a capital receipt, reduce revenue costs nominally in terms of 
grounds maintenance  

 

7. Comments of Chief Financial Officer 
 
7.1 The land is of no strategic or economic value to the Authority, so a disposal would be beneficial 

by generating a capital receipt to be reinvested in the capital programme.  In addition, the 
potential revenue maintenance and management costs associated with the site would be 
eliminated.  There is also the wider benefit of supporting a significant housing development in the 
area. 

 
7.2 Capital receipts are a corporate resource and are therefore not hypothecated outside Cabinet. 

They are regularly reported to Cabinet in the Capital Programme monitoring reports.  Decisions 
on their use is a Cabinet decision, taking into account the wider funding issues around the 
Council’s capital programme. Receipts earmarked to 21C School’s programme (which attracts 
WG match funding) have reached the minimum required levels for Band A and are now being 
used in forecasting the funding envelope for the new medium term capital programme being 
developed. 

Page 7



 

8. Comments of Monitoring Officer 
 
8.1 The proposed action is in accordance with the Council’s statutory powers under Section 122 (2A) 

and 123 (2A) of the Local Government Act 1972.  This area of land adjacent to the sold 
residential development site has been used as informal public open space for a number of years 
and is currently appropriated for recreational use.  However, the sale of this site to Pobl will 
facilitate an improved layout and housing density for the development and generate a capital 
receipt for land that, otherwise, would have no development potential. Therefore, it is open to the 
Council to re-appropriate the land for planning purposes and to dispose of the land for 
redevelopment.  The advantage of appropriating the land for planning purposes prior to disposal 
is that this would override any existing rights in relation to the public open space under section 
241 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. However, before re-appropriating and disposing 
of the land, the Council is required to give public notice in two consecutive weeks in the local 
newspaper under sections 122 (2A) and also section 233(4) of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990.  The Cabinet Member must consider any objections received before deciding whether 
to proceed with the proposed re-appropriation and disposal. Any disposal would have to be at the 
best price reasonably obtainable but a direct negotiated sale to Pobl, in conjunction with the 
development of the adjoining site, is likely to release far more value than its current recreational 
use. 

 

9. Comments of Head of People and Business Change 
 
9.1 The report explains the consideration between beneficial development opportunities and the 

conservation of open space at this site.  The proposed appropriation and disposal for 
development would contribute to an improved layout and more spacious social housing units.  
Access to high quality affordable housing is a major contributor to wellbeing however this would 
come with the loss of open space at this site. The community profile indicates the St Julian’s 
ward has a deficit of informal open space. The site is however relatively small and an improved 
riverside walk would be developed as a form of mitigation.  The planned consultation will provide 
additional evidence to inform decision making.   

 

10. Comments of Cabinet Member 
 
10.1 Cabinet Member has approved the report. 
 

11. Local issues – Ward Member Comments 
 
11.1 Cllr Phil Hourahine - I am content with the Cabinet Member’s proposal for the disposal of the 

extension land at Herbert Road. 
 
11.2 Cllr Carmel Townsend –  
 

(1) As the report states, St. Julians currently is deficient in open space and this proposal would 
make the situation worse. 

(2) No informal consultation has been undertaken to date, so there is no data/information about 
the views of residents and the local school about the loss of this space.  Cabinet approval 
effectively kick-starts the disposal of the land and there is no guarantee that objections/ 
formal consultation could stop the process. 

(3) While the report refers to discussions between Council officers and the Housing Association, 
about the possibility of a new planning application for the existing Herbert Road site, there is 
no guarantee that a new application would be submitted. 

 
11.3 Cllr Holly Townsend - I endorse the points made by (other) Cllr Townsend.  Although the report 

states there will be minimal loss of open space, there are limited areas like this in St Julians apart 
from the Glebelands. 

 

Page 8



 

12. Scrutiny Committees 
 
12.1 N/A 
 

13. Equalities Impact Assessment and the Equalities Act 2010 
 
13.1 The Equality Act 2010 contains a Public Sector Equality Duty which came into force on 06 April 

2011.  The Act identifies a number of ‘protected characteristics’, namely age; disability; gender 
reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; sexual orientation; marriage 
and civil partnership.  The new single duty aims to integrate consideration of equality and good 
relations into the regular business of public authorities. Compliance with the duty is a legal 
obligation and is intended to result in better informed decision-making and policy development 
and services that are more effective for users.  In exercising its functions, the Council must have 
due regard to the need to: eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other 
conduct that is prohibited by the Act; advance equality of opportunity between persons who share 
a protected characteristic and those who do not; and foster good relations between persons who 
share a protected characteristic and those who do not.  The Act is not overly prescriptive about 
the approach a public authority should take to ensure due regard, although it does set out that 
due regard to advancing equality involves: removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by 
people due to their protected characteristics; taking steps to meet the needs of people from 
protected groups where these differ from the need of other people; and encouraging people from 
protected groups to participate in public life or in other activities where their participation is 
disproportionately low.  

 

14. Children and Families (Wales) Measure 
 
14.1 Although no targeted consultation takes place specifically aimed at children and young people, 

consultation on planning applications and appeals is open to all of our citizens regardless of their 
age.  Depending on the scale of the proposed development, applications are publicised via letters 
to neighbouring occupiers, site notices, press notices and/or social media.  People replying to 
consultations are not required to provide their age or any other personal data, and therefore this 
data is not held or recorded in any way, and responses are not separated out by age. 

 

15. Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
 
15.1 The background and proposal demonstrate how the Act has been applied in arriving at the 

proposal given the competing demands of maintaining open space whilst at the same time having 
the opportunity to create a much improved site layout and overall housing layout for this major 
affordable housing site. 

 
Long-term – this report explains that the site is currently used for recreation purposes and 
following any appropriation would be developed resulting in a loss of informal open space.  
However the site is relatively small and the potential to develop new affordable housing units is a 
key consideration.  The proposed development will include a riverside walk which will maintain 
public access to the remaining open space.    

   
Integration – the proposed development of the site should help secure improved wellbeing for 
future tenants and will improve affordable housing supply. 
 
Collaboration – the development involves a key local partner in the Pobl Group who are a well-

established social landlord involved in area regeneration.  
 
Involvement – Statutory consultation will be undertaken ahead of the appropriation with the 

results reported to the Cabinet Member. 
 

Page 9



 

Prevention – affordable high quality housing plays a part in improving key determinants of 

wellbeing and community cohesion including health, education and economic inclusion.  Flood 
protection measures should reduce vulnerabilities for the surrounding riverside locality.  

 

16. Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
 
16.1 Section 17(1) of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes a duty on the Local Authority to 

exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those functions 
on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, crime and disorder in its area.   

 

17. Consultation  
 
17.1 Comments received from wider consultation, including comments from elected members, are 

detailed in each application report in the attached schedule. 
 

18. Background Papers 
 
18.1 Site Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated:  11 September 2017 
  

Page 10



 

 

Page 11



 

 

P
age 12



 

Report 
Cabinet Member for Assets and Member Development 
 
Part 1  

 
Date:  11 September 2017 
 

Subject Duffryn Woodlands Project 
 

Purpose To outline an opportunity to upgrade and improve the management of this asset by 

granting a lease to a local Community Group 
 

Author  Housing and Assets Manager 

 

Ward Tredegar Park 

 

Summary Colleagues in the Green Services team have been working with Duffryn Community Link 

to seek funding for the improvement of the woodland, comprising the land referred to in 
this report.  An initial grant of £11,000 has been received by the applicant, towards the 
cost of developing a programme of works to improve Community access to the land.  In 
order to progress with its grant application, Duffryn Community Link has requested that 
the Council issues it with a letter of support.  If grant funding is awarded, the Council will 
be expected to facilitate use of the land by Duffryn Community Link by entering into a 
lease. 

 

Proposal Agree to issue the letter of support requested and if the grant application is 

successful, grant a lease of the land on terms recommended by Newport Norse and 
agreed by the Head of Legal and Regulatory Services. 

 

 
Action by  Newport City Council, supported by Newport Norse 

 

Timetable Immediate 

 
This report was prepared after consultation with: 

   
 Estates Team Leader, Newport Norse 
 Estates Portfolio Officer, Newport Norse 
 Property Services Manager, Newport Norse 
 Strategic Director – Place, Newport City Council 
 Head of Regeneration, Investment and Housing, Newport City Council 
 Head of Finance – Chief Finance Officer 
 Head of Law and Regulations – Monitoring Officer 
 Head of People and Business Change 

 

Signed 

Page 13

Agenda Item 2



 

1. Background 
 
1.1 The Duffryn Woodlands (shown at Appendix 1) is owned by Newport City Council and held as a 

Corporate asset. The woodlands currently is overgrown, underused and subject to fly tipping.  
There are a number of burnt out cars abandoned on the land.  

 
1.2 Duffryn Community Link has been working with National Trust, Growing Space and Keep Wales 

Tidy on a proposal for Big Lottery funding, looking at the re-generation of the woodlands area in 
Duffryn and the development of sensory gardens in Tredegar House Park.  

 
1.3 In order to progress the project, Duffryn Community Link have been successful in securing 

£11,000 funding from Big Lottery.  This will be used to consult and engage with the community in 
Duffryn, to develop proposals and prepare a project plan to bid for up to £1.2 million pounds to be 
used in this area.   

 
1.4 Green Services have been consulted and have confirmed support for the project.  In addition to 

securing capital to invest in facilities, passing management of the land to a lessee should reduce 
management costs.  

 
1.5 An external tree officer has been consulted and has provided advice for the works that would be 

required for the woodland area.  
 
1.6 Duffryn Community Link is currently in the development phase of the project, using the £11,000 

funding. As part of the development phase they have been canvassing views and opinions within 
the community, stakeholders and partners.  It has also prepared a brief proposal of surveys/plans 
which will be needed to deliver the project and which they would then be expected to undertake if 
the full grant is awarded.  

 
1.7 In order to support the bid for funding, Duffryn Community Link requires a letter from the Council 

as land owner, stating that if the application is successful Newport City Council would be willing 
to grant a lease of the land.  

 
1.8 Dependent on the funding secured, a lease of up to ten years could be required. Under £100,000 

capital, the lease would be for 5-7 years and £100,000-£350,000 capital, the lease would for 10 
years.  

 
1.9 Although the initial request is for a letter of support only, it should be acknowledged that should 

the application be successful, there would be an expectation that the Council will grant a lease to 
Duffryn Community Link to enable the land to be upgraded and made available for wider 
community use.  In agreeing the letter of letter of support, the Council therefore is agreeing in 
principle to grant a lease. 

 
1.10 This matter was considered by the Council’s Capital Strategy and Asset Management Group at 

its meeting on 16 December 2016.  The view of the CSAMG was that the project should be 
supported and a letter of support provided. 

 
1.11 It is not considered appropriate for the Council to make an application for planning permission as 

this will be a matter for Duffryn Community Link, if the matter proceeds. 
 
1.12 As this is a Community project managed through a lease, overage provisions are not appropriate. 
 
1.13 There are no staffing implications in issuing the letter of support or granting a lease. 
 
 
 
  

Page 14



 

2. Financial Summary 
 
 

 Year 1 
(Current) 

£ 

Year 2 
 

£ 

Year 3 
 

£ 

Ongoing 
 
£ 

Notes 
including budgets heads affected 

Costs     Management action and 
maintenance costs are largely on a 
reactive basis.  These would be 
reduced or eliminated if the 
applicant take over management of 
the land. 

(Income)      

Net Costs      
(Savings)      

Net Impact 
on Budget 

     

 
 

3. Risks 
 
 

Risk Impact of 
Risk if it 
occurs* 
(H/M/L) 

Probability 
of risk 
occurring 
(H/M/L) 

What is the Council doing or 
what has it done to avoid the 
risk or reduce its effect 

Who is 
responsible 
for dealing 
with the risk? 

The 
application for 
Grant support 
is refused. 

H M Provide the requested letter of 
support and any other practical 
intervention/information 

Newport City 
Council and 
Newport Norse 

Lease with 
Duffryn 
Community 
Link does not 
proceed 

H L Terms to be discussed with 
Duffryn Community Link for 
early consideration 

Newport City 
Council and 
Newport Norse 

Management 
of Woodlands 
area remains 
with Council 

H L Working with Duffryn 
Community Link  

Newport City 
Council 

 
* Taking account of proposed mitigation measures 

 
 

4. Links to Council Policies and Priorities 
 

14.1 Corporate Asset Management Plan 2013-18 
Single Integrated Plan (SIP) 
Service development plans 
 
The proposed project for the area of woodland touches in some part all of the Council’s priorities 
of being a : 

 

 Caring and fairer city 

 A greener and healthier city 

 A safer and learning city  
 

Page 15



 

 
This is easy to see when reading through the brief that is being taken forward to generate the 
funding bid. 

 

5. Options Available and considered  
 

5.1 Decline the request and continue to manage the land as currently. 
 
5.2 Agree to issue the letter of support requested and if the grant application is successful, grant a 

lease of the land on terms recommended by Newport Norse and agreed by the Head of Legal 
and Regulatory Services. 

 

6. Preferred Option and Why 
 
6.1 Agree to issue the letter of support requested and if the grant application is successful, grant a 

lease of the land on terms recommended by Newport Norse and agreed by the Head of Legal 
and Regulatory Services. 

 
6.2 This will release capital finance to invest in the land and should relieve the Council of 

management and maintenance costs. 
 

7. Comments of Chief Financial Officer 
 
7.1 The proposal will see responsibility of maintenance and management of the land pass to the 

applicant, which will benefit the Council financially by removing the costs currently incurred on a 
reactive basis.  This arrangement will also bring community benefits by bringing the area back 
into wider public use.  The additional benefit for the area concerned and the Community Group is 
access to additional grant funding streams that may not otherwise present themselves to NCC 
directly.  As the land is of little financial, and of no operational, value to the Council, there are no 
significant disadvantages to this proposal, as long as satisfactory terms are agreed on the lease, 
which do not create a financial commitment against Council budgets. 

 

8. Comments of Monitoring Officer 
 
8.1 The transfer of the Duffryn Woodland to a community group would in accordance with the 

Council’s statutory powers under Section 122 (2A) and 123 (2A) of the Local Government Act 
1972.  At this stage, only a letter of support is required in respect of the grant application, but this 
would require a commitment from the Council to transfer the woodland in the event that the 
application was successful and granting funding was obtained.  Although the community group 
would maintain the woodland for public use, the grant of a lease in excess of 7 years would give 
them exclusive rights over the land and constitute a re-appropriation and “disposal” of public 
open space for the purposes of sections 122 (2A) and 123 (2A).  This would necessitate public 
notice of the proposed appropriation and disposal and consideration of any objections received 
before the lease could be confirmed.  

 

9. Comments of Head of People and Business Change 
 
9.1 The proposal relates to the development phase of a project to bid for major funding to develop 

community access to Duffryn Woodlands. Whilst the report does not include a detailed project 
description at this stage the partner organisations are well respected in countryside conservation, 
regeneration and management.  Access to green space was identified as an important 
contributor to improving wellbeing in the consultation work carried out for the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations Act 2015, and was particularly important in responses from children and young 
people. The Community Profile notes that Whilst Tredegar Park Ward actually has an overall 
surplus of open space there is a deficit of equipped open space and this is potentially something 
that the project could address.   

Page 16



 

 
9.2 The Tredegar Park ward records relatively high levels of deprivation including indicators of ill-

health, economic inactivity and crime/ASB.  A well-managed local asset such as a community 
woodland could have a positive and preventative impact in addressing issues like social 
exclusion, physical inactivity and environmental nuisance and crime/ASB.   

 
9.3 It is noted that the project will include significant community involvement which is also regarded a 

positive in terms of principles of sustainable development. 
 

10. Comments of Cabinet Member 
 
10.1 Cabinet Member has approved the report. 
 

11. Local issues – Ward Member Comments 
 
11.1 None received. 
 

12. Scrutiny Committees 
 
12.1 N/A 
 

13. Equalities Impact Assessment and the Equalities Act 2010 
 
13.1 The Equality Act 2010 contains a Public Sector Equality Duty which came into force on 06 April 

2011.  The Act identifies a number of ‘protected characteristics’, namely age; disability; gender 
reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; sexual orientation; marriage 
and civil partnership.  The new single duty aims to integrate consideration of equality and good 
relations into the regular business of public authorities. Compliance with the duty is a legal 
obligation and is intended to result in better informed decision-making and policy development 
and services that are more effective for users.  In exercising its functions, the Council must have 
due regard to the need to: eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other 
conduct that is prohibited by the Act; advance equality of opportunity between persons who share 
a protected characteristic and those who do not; and foster good relations between persons who 
share a protected characteristic and those who do not.  The Act is not overly prescriptive about 
the approach a public authority should take to ensure due regard, although it does set out that 
due regard to advancing equality involves: removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by 
people due to their protected characteristics; taking steps to meet the needs of people from 
protected groups where these differ from the need of other people; and encouraging people from 
protected groups to participate in public life or in other activities where their participation is 
disproportionately low.  

 

14. Children and Families (Wales) Measure 
 
14.1 Although no targeted consultation takes place specifically aimed at children and young people, 

consultation on planning applications and appeals is open to all of our citizens regardless of their 
age.  Depending on the scale of the proposed development, applications are publicised via letters 
to neighbouring occupiers, site notices, press notices and/or social media.  People replying to 
consultations are not required to provide their age or any other personal data, and therefore this 
data is not held or recorded in any way, and responses are not separated out by age. 

 

15. Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
 
15.1 This project is an ideal example of how the key principles of sustainable development can fit 

together to transform something that in the short term would continue to be a problem and blight 
within a community to something that has a long term future but one that is integrated into the 

Page 17



 

community and provides a real element of support and improvement in children’s wellbeing and 
development. 

 
15.2 For example this are of woodland in the short term will continue to be left to deteriorate, attract 

further fly tipping and drag the area and community down. 
 
15.3 Instead of simply looking at trying to keep the area clear the groups that are coming together 

initially are looking to convert this area in to something greater than open space and integrate it in 
to positive learning experience for people in the community of all ages. 

 
15.4  This has already involved collaboration of a considerable degree of some key players to get the 

proposal of the ground where a bid can be made for considerable resources as investment in the 
project and the Council playing its part as land owner. The plans in going forward also 
demonstrate there will be considerable amount of consultation with the community in respect the 
design, management and outcomes that everyone wishes to see. 

 

16. Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
 
16.1 Section 17(1) of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes a duty on the Local Authority to 

exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those functions 
on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, crime and disorder in its area.   

 

17. Consultation  
 
17.1 Comments received from wider consultation, including comments from elected members, are 

detailed in each application report in the attached schedule. 
 
 

18. Background Papers 
 
 Site plan attached. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated:  11 September 2017 
  

Page 18



 

Site Plan 
 
 
 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report 
Cabinet Member for Assets and Member Development 
 
 
Part 1  

 
Date:  11 September 2017 
 
 

Subject Lease of Rhiwderin Play Area, Rhiwderin, Newport, to Graig 
Community Council 

 

Purpose To seek approval from the Cabinet Member for Assets and Member Development to 

lease the land at Rhiwderin Play Area to Graig Community Council for use as a play area 
only. 

 

Author  Housing and Assets Manager 

 

Ward Graig 

 

Summary Newport City Council recently acquired the land at Rhiwderin, using S106 money and 

have installed new play equipment. The Council now wish to transfer the land to Graig 
Community Council by way of a lease in order that they can manage and maintain the 
play area. A sum of s106 money will also be given to the Community Council to assist 
with the ongoing management of the area. 

 

Proposal To transfer the land to Graig Community Council by way of a lease on terms to be 

agreed by the Head of Law and Regulation. 

 
Action by  Newport City Council with Newport Norse 

 

Timetable Immediate 

 
This report was prepared after consultation with: 

 
 Estates Team Leader, Newport Norse 
 Estates Portfolio Officer, Newport Norse 
 Property Services Manager, Newport Norse 
 Strategic Director, Place, Newport City Council 
 Head of Regeneration, Investment and Housing, Newport City Council 
 Head of Finance – Chief Finance Officer, Newport City Council 
 Head of Law and Regulations – Monitoring Officer, Newport City Council 
 Head of People and Business Change, Newport City Council 
 Parks and Outdoor Recreation Manager, Newport City Council 
 

 

 

Signed 

Page 21

Agenda Item 3



 

1. Background 
 
1.1 It has been established that Graig is in the top 20% of most deficient wards in terms of 

designated open space provision and is also deficient in equipped open space. When the lease 
between Graig Community Council and the previous land owners ended the Council sought to 
prevent the situation getting worse and in the long term have the community involved as they 
were originally.  

 
1.2 The opportunity recently arose of being able to use S106 money to help arrest this decline and 

Newport City Council purchased the land at Gloch Wen, Rhiwderin for £10,000 using this S106 
money. Cabinet Member for approval for this was granted 4 November 2015. Over the last 12 
months the land has been acquired and the play equipment installed. Newport City Councils 
Parks and Outdoor Recreation Manager has requested that the play area now be leased to Graig 
Community Council for them to manage and maintain the play area for a term of 99 years.  

 
1.3 Graig Community Council are well placed to manage the site as they held a lease with the 

previous land owners (Newbridge Estates). Their lease came to an end and the old play 
equipment was removed. Newbridge Estates had no requirement for the land and wished to 
dispose of it and offered it to Newport City Council.  

 
1.4 The benefit of leasing the land to Graig Community Council relieves the Council of the ongoing 

maintenance and management of the play area. It does also fit well within the principles of 
sustainable development set out in the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015 as it sees the 
Council seeking to achieve its wellbeing objectives through collaboration and involvement of the 
local community to secure a long term outcome in reinstating lost play area. 

 
1.5 However, Graig Community Council will receive ongoing funding from the Council (using s106 

money) to meet the ongoing cost of maintenance repairs for a period of 20 years. Thereafter 
Graig Community Council will cover any ongoing costs. Newport City Council’s Parks section will 
receive £25 per safety inspection which will be undertaken on a weekly basis for a minimum of 5 
years, again this will be funded using s106 money. This report therefore seeks Cabinet Member 
approval to proceed.  

 

2. Financial Summary 
 

2.1 There are no financial implications. Leasing the land to Graig Community Council will release the 
Council from any maintenance and management obligations. A sum of s106 money will be given 
to Graig Community Council from s106 funds to support them as detailed above.   

 

 Year 1 
(Current) 

£ 

Year 2 
 

£ 

Year 3 
 

£ 

Ongoing 
 
£ 

Notes 
including budgets heads affected 

Costs      
(Income)      

Net Costs      
(Savings)      

Net Impact 
on Budget 

     

 
3. Risks 
 
 

Risk Impact  of 
Risk if it 
occurs* 
(H/M/L) 

Probability 
of risk 
occurring 
(H/M/L) 

What is the Council doing or 
what has it done to avoid the 
risk or reduce its effect 

Who is 
responsible 
for dealing 
with the risk? 

Page 22



 

Lease with 
Graig 
Community 
Council does 
not proceed 

M L Terms sent to Graig 
Community Council for their 
consideration 

Newport City 
Council 

Management 
of play area 
remains with 
Council 

M L Working with Graig 
Community Council.  

Newport City 
Council 

 

4. Links to Council Policies and Priorities 
 

4.1 Corporate Asset Management Plan 2013-18 
 

Service Development Plans  
 
Single Integrated Plan (SIP)  
 
Within the Single Integrated Plan ‘ Feeling good about Newport ‘ there are three core priorities: 
 

 Economy and skills 

 Health and wellbeing 

 Safe and cohesive communities 
 
The proposed action clearly touches on two of the key priorities. 
  

5. Options Available and considered  
 
5.1 Take no action. 
 
5.2 Proceed with Graig Community Council and offer terms to be agreed by Head of Law and 

Regulation.  
 

6. Preferred Option and Why 
 

6.1 Proceed with Graig Community Council and offer terms to be agreed by Head of Law and 
Regulation.  

 

7. Comments of Chief Financial Officer 
 
7.1 The proposed arrangement will result in the release of S106 monies currently held by NCC to a 

third party.  Due to the terms of the S106 agreement, alternative uses for these funds are limited, 
and would otherwise be allocated to funding the revenue costs incurred by the Parks department 
for the ongoing maintenance of the site on an annual basis.  There is no further capital 
expenditure required in this area, and this use has been approved by the Planning Contributions 
Manager.  In transferring the funds to Graig Community Council, the net financial impact will be 
nil – associated costs will only be incurred if paid for by GCC (minimum five years) as outlined in 
the report. 

 

8. Comments of Monitoring Officer 
 
8.1 The proposed lease in favour of Graig Community Council is in accordance with the Council’s 

legal powers to dispose of land under Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972.  Because 
the lease will be for a period of 99 years, this will be classed as a “disposal” and, therefore, there 
will be a requirement to show that the Council has secured best value for the land.  However, if 
the community council are to take on all future maintenance responsibility for the play area, then 

Page 23



 

this transfer of liability on a full repairing and insuring lease should be sufficient consideration for 
the transfer, without the need for any significant rental or payment. The lease will need to be 
subject to a restrictive covenant that requires the land to be retained and maintained as a play 
area.  The agreed contribution from s106 monies towards future maintenance costs for the first 
20 years of the lease will need to be specifically documented either in the lease or in a separate 
legal agreement. Any statutory inspections carried out by Council officers on behalf of the 
community council will need to be the subject of a separate SLA.  

 

9. Comments of Head of People and Business Change 
 
9.1 As stated in the Community Wellbeing Profile for Graig, the Fields In Trust benchmark 

assessment indicates that Graig is in the top 20% of most deficient wards in terms of designated 
open space provision and is also deficient in equipped open space.  The reinstatement of the 
play equipment will prevent this deficit increasing.   Accessible open space was clearly identified 
by the public as a key contributor to wellbeing, and was particularly important to children and 
young people. A proposal which will help to safeguard play provision in this area is supported. 

 

10. Comments of Cabinet Member 
 
10.1 Cabinet Member has approved the report. 
 

11. Local issues – Ward Member Comments 
 
11.1 None received. 
 

12. Scrutiny Committees 
 
12.1 N/A 
 

13. Equalities Impact Assessment and the Equalities Act 2010 
 
13.1 The Equality Act 2010 contains a Public Sector Equality Duty which came into force on 06 April 

2011.  The Act identifies a number of ‘protected characteristics’, namely age; disability; gender 
reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; sexual orientation; marriage 
and civil partnership.  The new single duty aims to integrate consideration of equality and good 
relations into the regular business of public authorities. Compliance with the duty is a legal 
obligation and is intended to result in better informed decision-making and policy development 
and services that are more effective for users.  In exercising its functions, the Council must have 
due regard to the need to: eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other 
conduct that is prohibited by the Act; advance equality of opportunity between persons who share 
a protected characteristic and those who do not; and foster good relations between persons who 
share a protected characteristic and those who do not.  The Act is not overly prescriptive about 
the approach a public authority should take to ensure due regard, although it does set out that 
due regard to advancing equality involves: removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by 
people due to their protected characteristics; taking steps to meet the needs of people from 
protected groups where these differ from the need of other people; and encouraging people from 
protected groups to participate in public life or in other activities where their participation is 
disproportionately low.  

 

14. Children and Families (Wales) Measure 
 
14.1 Although no targeted consultation takes place specifically aimed at children and young people, 

consultation on planning applications and appeals is open to all of our citizens regardless of their 
age.  Depending on the scale of the proposed development, applications are publicised via letters 
to neighbouring occupiers, site notices, press notices and/or social media.  People replying to 

Page 24



 

consultations are not required to provide their age or any other personal data, and therefore this 
data is not held or recorded in any way, and responses are not separated out by age. 

 
15. Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
 
15.1 The background of this report outlines how the principles of sustainable development have been 

followed in seeking to re-establish a play area in Rhiwderin and have full community engagement 
in the long management of the amenity.  

 

16. Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
 
16.1 Section 17(1) of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes a duty on the Local Authority to 

exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those functions 
on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, crime and disorder in its area.   

 

17. Consultation  
 
17.1 Comments received from wider consultation, including comments from elected members, are 

detailed in each application report in the attached schedule. 
 

18. Background Papers 
 
18.1 Cabinet Member for People & Business Change – Acquisition of Land at Gloch Wen, Rhiwderin 4 

November 2015 
 
18.2  Site Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated: 11 September 2017 
 

Page 25



 

 

Page 26


	Agenda
	1 Disposal of Herbert Road Extension Land
	2 Development - Duffryn Woodlands Project
	3 Lease of Rhiwderin Play Area, Rhiwderin, Newport to Graig Community Council

